
 
 
 

 
 

 

 

 
Governance and Human Resources 

Town Hall, Upper Street, London, N1 2UD 
 
 

AGENDA FOR THE LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE C 

 
Members of Licensing Sub Committee C are summoned to a meeting, which will be held in 
Committee Room 4, Town Hall, Upper Street, N1 2UD on, 9 December 2014 at 6.30 pm. 
 
 
John Lynch 
Head of Democratic Services 
 
 

Enquiries to : Jackie Tunstall 

Tel : 020 7527 3068 

E-mail : democracy@islington.gov.uk 

Despatched : 28 November 2014 

 
 
Membership Substitute 
 
Councillor Gary Poole (Chair) 
Councillor Satnam Gill (Vice-Chair) 
Councillor Michelline Safi Ngongo 
 

All other members of the Licensing committee 

 
Quorum: is 3 Councillors 
 

 
Welcome :  Members of the public are welcome to attend this meeting.  

Procedures to be followed at the meeting are attached. 

Public Document Pack



 
 
 

 

A.  
 

Formal matters 
 

Page 

1.  Introductions and procedure 
 

 

2.  Apologies for absence 
 

 

3.  Declarations of substitute members 
 

 

4.  Declarations of interest 
 

 

 If you have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest* in an item of business: 
 if it is not yet on the council’s register, you must declare both the 

existence and details of it at the start of the meeting or when it becomes 
apparent; 

 you may choose to declare a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest that is 
already in the register in the interests of openness and transparency.   

In both the above cases, you must leave the room without participating in 
discussion of the item. 
 
If you have a personal interest in an item of business and you intend to speak 
or vote on the item you must declare both the existence and details of it at the 
start of the meeting or when it becomes apparent but you may participate in the 
discussion and vote on the item. 
 

*(a) Employment, etc - Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation 
carried on for profit or gain. 

(b) Sponsorship - Any payment or other financial benefit in respect of your 
expenses in carrying out duties as a member, or of your election; including 
from a trade union. 

(c)  Contracts - Any current contract for goods, services or works, between you 
or your partner (or a body in which one of you has a beneficial interest) and 
the council. 

(d)  Land - Any beneficial interest in land which is within the council’s area. 

(e)  Licences- Any licence to occupy land in the council’s area for a month or 
longer. 

(f)  Corporate tenancies - Any tenancy between the council and a body in 
which you or your partner have a beneficial interest. 

 (g) Securities - Any beneficial interest in securities of a body which has a place 
of business or land in the council’s area, if the total nominal value of the 
securities exceeds £25,000 or one hundredth of the total issued share 
capital of that body or of any one class of its issued share capital.   

 
This applies to all members present at the meeting. 
 

 

5.  Order of Business 
 

 

6.  Minutes of Previous Meetings 
 

1 - 18 

B.  
 

Items for Decision 
 

Page 

1.  Mini Food Store, 8 Kings Cross Road, WC1X 9AQ - Application for a premises 
licence review. 

19 - 52 



 
 
 

 

C.  
 

Urgent non-exempt items 
 

 

 Any non-exempt items which the Chair agrees should be considered urgently by 
reason of special circumstances. The reasons for urgency will be agreed by the 
Chair and recorded in the minutes. 

 

D.  
 

Exclusion of public and press 
 

 

 To consider whether, in view of the nature of the remaining items on the agenda, 
any of them are likely to involve the disclosure of exempt or confidential 
information within the terms of the Access to Information Procedure Rules in the 
Constitution and, if so, whether to exclude the press and public during 
discussion thereof. 

 

E.  
 

Urgent Exempt Items (if any) 
 

 

 Any exempt items which the Chair agrees should be considered urgently by 
reason of special circumstances.  The reasons for urgency will be agreed by the 
Chair and recorded in the minutes. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 

 
ISLINGTON LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEES -   
  
PROCEDURE FOR HEARING LICENSING REVIEW APPLICATIONS UNDER THE  
LICENSING ACT 2003 

 

  
INTRODUCTION TIME 

GUIDE 
1)  The Chair of the Sub-Committee will open the meeting and invite all members of the Sub-Committee, 
Officers, the applicant and anybody making representations, including witnesses (who have been given 
permission to appear) to introduce themselves. 

 

  
2)  The Chair will introduce the application and draw attention to the procedure to be followed as detailed 
below. 

 

  
CONSIDERATION OF APPLICATIONS:  
N.B. The Sub-Committee have read all the papers.  All parties should use this time to present a 
summary of their key points and not to repeat the detail already provided in the report. 

 

  
3)  The Licensing Officer will report any further information relating to the application or representations. 
Where necessary the relevant parties will respond to these points during their submissions. 

 

  
4)  The applicant (interested party or responsible authority) to present the key points of their 
representations; and clarify any points requested by the Authority.  Witnesses, given permission by the 
Authority, may appear. 

10 
mins 

  
5)  The Sub-Committee to question the responsible authorities on matters arising from their submission.  
  
6) Other representatives (interested party or responsible authority) to present the key points of their 
representations; and clarify any points requested by the Authority.  Witnesses, given permission by the 
Authority, may appear. 

10 
mins 

  
7)  The Sub-Committee to question the other representatives (interested party or responsible authority on 
matters arising from their submission. 

 

  
8) The licensee to present the key points of their application, address the representations and clarify any 
points requested by the Authority.  Witnesses given permission by the Authority may appear. 

10 
mins 

  
9)  The Sub-Committee to question the applicants on matters arising from their submission.  
 
10)  If required, the Licensing Officer to clarify matters relating to the application and the Licensing Policy. 

 

 
11)  The Chair may give permission for any party to question another party in the order of representations     
given above. 

 

 
CASE SUMMARIES 

 

  
12)  Applicant 2 
13)  Oher representatives mins 
14)  Licensee each 
  

DELIBERATION AND DECISION  
 
15)  The Sub-Committee may retire to consider its decision.  The Committee Clerk and Legal Officer will 
remain with the Sub-Committee. 

 

 
16)  If the Sub-Committee retires, all parties should remain available to provide further information or 
clarification. 

 

 
17)  The chair will announce their decision giving reasons and any conditions to be attached to the 
licence.  All parties will be informed of the decision in writing. 

 



 

15 
 

London Borough of Islington 
 

Licensing Sub Committee C -  22 September 2014 
 

Minutes of the meeting of the Licensing Sub Committee C held at Committee Room 4, Town Hall, 
Upper Street, N1 2UD on  22 September 2014 at 6.30 pm. 

 
 

Present: Councillors: Gary Poole (Chair), Angela Picknell and Nick Wayne 

    

 
Councillor Gary Poole in the Chair 

 

 

18 INTRODUCTIONS AND PROCEDURE (Item 1) 
Councillor Poole welcomed everyone to the meeting, asked members and officers to 
introduce themselves and outlined the procedures to be followed at the meeting. 
 

19 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE (Item 2) 
Received from Councillors Gill and Ngongo. 
 

20 DECLARATIONS OF SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS (Item 3) 
Councillor Picknell substituted for Councillor Gill and Councillor Wayne substituted for 
Councillor Ngongo. 
 

21 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST (Item 4) 
None. 
 

22 ORDER OF BUSINESS (Item 5) 
The Chair stated that the applications would be discussed in the order they appeared on the 
agenda. 
 

23 BEST MANGAL BAR AND RESTAURANT-CLUB REINA, 85 CHARTERHOUSE 
STREET, EC1 - VARIATION APPLICATION (Item 1) 
The Licensing Officer reported that an application for a variation of DPS had been received 
to permit Mr Stefano Del Core to replace Mr Sinan Kurt as DPS.  He also reported that the 
applicant was not now seeking off sales of alcohol. There were additional conditions which 
the Licensing Authority wished to see applied to the licence and which had been discussed 
with and agreed by the applicants, should the Sub-Committee be minded to approve the 
application.  These had arisen largely as a result of the applicant’s responses to 
representations made by the Licensing Authority and were detailed on pages 34 and 35 of 
the agenda. 
 
The Licensing Officer also reported that a certificate of lawfulness under Section 191-2 of 
the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended) was pending, though he had been 
copied into correspondence between the applicant and the Council’s Building Control 
Services, which satisfied him that this particular matter was being progressed. 
 
In response to questions, the Police Officer reported that he had been impressed with the 
way the applicants had engaged with the Police and confirmed that the majority of the 
outstanding documentation referred to on page 40 of the agenda, comprising the 
representation from the Islington Police Licensing Team, had now been received. The 
Police Officer stated that, in view of the history of crime and disorder reported at the 

Page 1

Agenda Item 6



Licensing Sub Committee C -  22 September 2014 
 

16 
 

premises in the past, he was working with the applicants to ensure that this did not happen 
in the future. 
 
The Noise Team representative stated that a copy of the calibration certificate supplied by 
an acoustician and the Noise Management Plan for the premises were awaited.  The 
applicant stated that these documents had been posted to the Council’s Noise Team on the 
preceding Friday. 
 
The applicants responded to Members’ questions about the management of access to the 
first and second floors of the building, capacity limits on each floor of the building and how 
that was to be managed, controlling the flow of persons outside the venue and access to 
and capacity of the designated smoking area . 
 
Members of the Sub-Committee left the room at 6.58pm to deliberate before returning at 
7.10pm to announce their decision. 
 
RESOLVED: 

(a) That the application for a variation of a premises licence in respect of Best Mangal Bar & 
Restaurant/Club Reina, 85 Charterhouse Street EC1M 6HJ be granted to: 

i) remove conditions 16,18,25, 28 and 29 of the current premises licence in so far as 
they apply to the ground floor of the premises 

ii) amend the floor plans attached to the current premises licence. 

(b) That the conditions detailed in appendix 3 of the report and the following conditions be 
attached to the licence: 
 
That the ground floor be used solely as a restaurant 
 
That no more than 10 smokers at a time be permitted in the designated smoking area 
 
That capacity checks be recorded in writing hourly 
 
That a minimum of two personal licence holders be on duty at all times 
 
The premises may not be used until signed off by a Building Control Officer 
 
The conditions suggested by the Police shall be included in the schedule of conditions 
 
REASONS FOR DECISION 
The Sub-Committee listened to all of the evidence and submissions and read all the 
material. The Sub-Committee reached the decision having given consideration to the 
Licensing Act 2003, as amended, and its regulations, the national guidance and the 
Council’s Licensing Policy.  
 
The application was for a variation of an existing licence. 
 
The present owners purchased the premises in November 2013. The premises consisted of 
3 floors and the application was to remove 5 conditions from the current licence as they 
apply to the ground floor of the premises and to amend the floor plans.  
 
The Sub-Committee considered the representations made by the Licensing Authority, the 
Police and the Noise Team, as well as representations made by the applicant. 

Page 2



Licensing Sub Committee C -  22 September 2014 
 

17 
 

 
At the hearing, the Licensing Authority requested additional conditions to those originally 
referred to in the papers. 
 
The additional conditions were agreed to by the licensee. 
 
The Sub-Committee considered whether the proposed variation with the proposed 
conditions would impact on the promotion of the licensing objectives and concluded that 
they should not have an adverse effect. 
 
The variation was accordingly agreed. 
 

24 BOROUGH WINES, 63 EXMOUTH MARKET, EC1 - NEW APPLICATION (Item 2) 
The Licensing Officer reported that the applicant had agreed to the suggested conditions on 
page 79. However, he noted that condition 14, which related to the closure of doors and 
windows at the premises at all times when recorded music was being played and during 
trading hours, was not necessary since the premises would be operating a buzzer entry 
system.   A copy of a further letter (dated “12 September 2013” (sic)) from one of the 
persons who had made a representation was passed around to Members, outlining 
concerns on opening hours, the area covered by the licence and security.  The Police 
representative stated that the Police had made no representations against this application. 
He commented that the inclusion of a buzzer entry system to the premises, which formed 
part of one of the objections to the application, had probably been suggested by the Police, 
as a mitigating factor to noise from the operation of the shutters and to keep noise to the 
residents at a minimum. 
 
The applicant stated that there was no buzzer to gain entry to the premises, rather an entry 
system, so there would be no additional noise caused to local residents. In addition, the 
shutter to the entrance was inside and electrical, so noise would be reduced. 
 
In response to questions from the Sub-Committee, the applicant said that she had not 
liaised directly with local residents about the application, although she had spoken to the 
managing agent for the building. 
 
The applicant stated that, although the application was to permit the sale of alcohol off the 
premises from 09:00 hours to 23:00 hours from Monday to Sunday, the expected operating 
schedule would be 10:00  hours to 22:00 hours, and the requested hours were mainly to 
give some leeway on wine tasting events. In response to a question, the applicant 
confirmed that there were no restrictions on planning. 
 
Members of the Sub-Committee left the room at 7.25pm to deliberate before returning at 
7.32pm to announce their decision. 
 

RESOLVED: 

That the application for a new premises licence in respect of the premises Borough Wines, 
63 Exmouth Market, EC1R 4QL, be granted, to permit the premises to sell alcohol for 
consumption off the premises from 09:00 to 23:00 on Monday to Sunday, subject to the 
following conditions: 
 

The conditions outlined in appendix 3 and detailed on page 79 of the agenda, with the 
following amendments/additions: the addition of conditions 2-9 from the Noise Team on 
page 72. 

Page 3



Licensing Sub Committee C -  22 September 2014 
 

18 
 

 
REASONS FOR DECISION 
 
The Sub-Committee listened to all the evidence and submissions and read all the material. 
The Sub-Committee reached their decision having given consideration to the Licensing Act 
2003, as amended, and its regulations, the national guidance and the Council’s Licensing 
Policy.  
 
This was an application for a new premises licence for the sale of alcohol for consumption 
off the premises from 09:00 hours to 23.00 hours, Monday to Sunday. 
 
The business intended to sell fine wines, craft beers and boutique spirits to a specific 
clientele. Wine tastings were also planned for the premises from time to time. 
 
A representation was made by the Noise Team and two written representations were 
received from residents, who did not attend the hearing. The Noise Team submitted 
recommended conditions, which were agreed to by the applicant. 
 
The Sub-Committee considered the fact that the premises were in a cumulative impact area 
and that there was accordingly a rebuttable presumption that applications for new premises 
licences that were likely to add to the cumulative impact will normally be refused, unless the 
applicant can demonstrate why the operation of the premises involved will not add to the 
cumulative impact, or otherwise impact adversely on the promotion of the licensing 
objectives. 
 
The Sub-Committee was satisfied that the Operational Schedule provided by the applicant 
demonstrated that the planned business would not add to the cumulative impact and 
adversely impact on the licensing objectives.   

The Sub-Committee accordingly decided to grant the application for a new premises licence 
in respect of the premises Borough Wines, 63 Exmouth Market, EC1R 4QL to permit the 
premises to sell alcohol for consumption off the premises from 09:00 to 23:00 on Monday to 
Sunday.  
 

25 MEDITERRANEAN RESTAURANT, 131-133 CENTRAL STREET, EC1 - NEW 
APPLICATION (Item 3) 
The Licensing Officer reported that, due to an error, twenty four letters from residents of 
Barnabas House, King’s Square, EC1, concurring with the views expressed in the letter of 
objection at pages 99 and 100 of the agenda, had been omitted from the papers circulated 
with the agenda. The Chair of the Sub-Committee read out the terms of the standard 
statement signed by the twenty four objectors and copies were passed to the applicant and 
his representative and to members of the Sub-Committee. 
 
The Licensing Officer highlighted the fact that there was a planning restriction on the 
operating hours of the premises, permitting use only between the hours of 08:00 hours to 
23:00 hours on weekdays and Saturdays and requiring closure on Sundays and Bank 
Holidays.  The application before the Sub-Committee sought permission to supply alcohol 
on the premises from 11:00 to 23:00 hours and late night refreshment from 23:00 to 
midnight, from Monday to Sunday. 
 
The Police representative pointed out that the premises was situated in a cumulative impact 
zone and that there had been two and a half thousand crimes in the area in 2013/14, 
including assaults and anti-social behaviour.  He had asked the applicant’s agent to contact 
him at the end of July to discuss how they proposed to mitigate the situation and to ensure 
that their premises did not add to the existing problems in the area, but had not been 

Page 4



Licensing Sub Committee C -  22 September 2014 
 

19 
 

contacted by the end of August.  He was concerned that, as the application stood, the 
premises could operate as another bar in the area.  If granted, he asked the Sub-Committee 
to consider the addition of a condition to ensure that the premises were operated solely as a 
restaurant.  In response to a question from a member of the Sub-Committee, the Police 
Officer said that anti-social behaviour was the main problem in the area, rather than crime, 
and there had been many Police call-outs to the area.  He also confirmed, in response to 
another question, that the only operating schedule he had seen from the applicant was that 
detailed on page 89 of the agenda and that no further documents had been supplied in that 
regard. 
 
The Noise Officer stated that she had spoken with the applicant about a further condition 
which should be applied to the licence, if the Sub-Committee were minded to agree the 
application. This proposed condition had been agreed by the applicant: “That there be no 
bottling out, collections or deliveries between the hours of 22:00 hours and 07:00 hours”. 
 
A representative of residents at Barnabas House in King’s Square stated that the premises 
was situated in a residential area and she could not understand why they proposed to stay 
open until midnight, when other businesses in the vicinity closed at 11pm. She and other 
residents remained concerned about anti-social behaviour in the area.  She stated that 
residents had enjoyed good relationships with other businesses in the area, that they were 
not opposed to the proposed new restaurant and were keen to seen no empty units in 
King’s Square. 
 
The applicant’s agent apologised if there had been miscommunication with the Police, but 
she believed that a message had been left with them. She asked that the request for late 
night refreshments from 23:00 to midnight from Monday to Sunday, detailed on page 92 of 
the agenda, be withdrawn. She also asked that the supply of alcohol be amended to 11:00 
hours to 22:30 hours, as her client wished to close the premises at 23:00 hours. She stated 
that it was not her client’s intention to run a bar at this premises. Her client owned a 
restaurant in King’s Cross and this restaurant would be run along similar lines, with six to 
eight staff and there would be no tables or chairs outside, or vertical drinking. She passed 
around copies of the menu which were available at the existing restaurant in King’s Cross 
and would be similar for the proposed restaurant in King's Square. There would be 
extensive CCTV at the proposed premises, comprising ten cameras, and she stated that 
she accepted the conditions proposed by the Licensing Officer and the Police. 
 
The applicant’s agent stated that she had attempted to speak to the Police Officer this 
evening.  She apologised again for any miscommunication and pointed out that August was 
her holiday period.  She hoped to be able to invite the Police to the restaurant in King’s 
Cross and the new premises, when established.  She understood that it was important to 
work with the Police. 
 
The Chair asked the agent whether there had been any engagement with the local 
community, particularly in view of the concerns and anxieties which had been expressed by 
them this evening.  The applicant’s agent stated that her client was new to the area and had 
received only one letter. She stated that her client would work with and engage with local 
residents, although there had been no contact to date.  
 
The Chair noted that, although the premises was situated in a cumulative impact zone, he 
had no assurance from the operating schedule that the applicant would take seriously his 
responsibilities to reduce alcohol harm and prevent crime in the area. 
The applicant’s agent said that this would be achieved by the conditions applied to the 
licence and the extra conditions which had been accepted by the applicant. 
 

Page 5



Licensing Sub Committee C -  22 September 2014 
 

20 
 

In response to a question to the resident objectors who were asked whether they felt 
reassured by the reduction in the proposed hours of operation of the premises and the 
menu, one of the residents said that she remained concerned. Another objector stated that 
the applicant was new to the area, but not to business and stressed again the high level of 
crime in the area.  There had been no attempt by the applicant to communicate with local 
residents. The residents were also concerned that there was no identified smoking area 
and, if patrons of the restaurant chose to smoke in Lever Street, this was directly under 
bedroom windows. 
 
In response, the applicant’s agent said that, once the premises was open and the licence 
had been granted, details of matters such as the main point of contact at the premises 
would be available.  There was no intention to run the premises as a bar and alcohol would 
be ancillary to the provision of meals.  It was her wish and that of her client to work with the 
Police and local residents. In response to a further question about how the applicant would 
engage with the local community if the licence was granted, the agent stated that the local 
community would be invited to a meeting. The applicant had spent substantial sums of 
money on the lease and works to the premises.  She added that this was a seated 
restaurant and therefore no security would be required.   
 
A member of the Sub-Committee asked about the restriction on hours of use, required by 
Planning.  The applicant’s agent said in response that they would have to withdraw 
Sundays from their application. 
 
Members of the Sub-Committee left the room at 8.15pm to deliberate before returning at 
8.33pm to announce their decision. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the application for a new premises licence in respect of Mediterranean Restaurant, 
131-133 Central Street, EC1V 8AP be refused. 
 
REASONS FOR DECISION 
 
The Sub-Committee listened to all the evidence and submissions and read all the material. 
The Sub-Committee reached the decision having given consideration to the Licensing Act 
2003, as amended, and its regulations, the national guidance and the Council’s Licensing 
Policy.  
 
The original application was for supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises from 
11am to 23:00 Monday to Sunday and for Late Night Refreshment both on the premises 
from 23:00 to midnight Monday to Sunday. 
 
During the course of the presentation of the application, the applicant’s representative 
stated that the application would be varied and that there would no longer be an application 
for Late Night Refreshment and that the sale of alcohol was only for 11am until 10.30pm 
and permission was not sought to sell alcohol on Sundays. 
 
The Sub-Committee heard submissions from the Police, 3 residents and the applicant’s 
representative. 
 
The objection from the Police was on the basis that the premises were in the Bunhill 
Cumulative Impact Area and there had been 2541 reported crimes in the area in the year 
April 2013 to March 2014, of which 200 reported crimes were assault. 
 

Page 6



Licensing Sub Committee C -  22 September 2014 
 

21 
 

The police further referred to the weak application that had been presented. The applicant 
had refused to engage with the police prior to the application. No attempt had been made 
by the applicant prior to the hearing to resolve the issues and lack of detail in relation to the 
application. 
 
More information had been sought by the Police in July 2014 and they had not received any 
response thereto. The Licensee’s representative apologised for this at the hearing. 
 
The Sub-Committee took into consideration the submissions made by all representatives 
and in particular the submissions made by the Police and the Licensee’s representative. 
 
The premises are situated in the Bunhill Cumulative Impact Area. Licensing Policy Number 
2 provides that the cumulative impact area policy creates a rebuttable presumption that 
applications for new premises licences that are likely to add to the existing cumulative 
impact will normally be refused, unless the applicant can demonstrate why the operation of 
the premises involved will not add to the cumulative impact or otherwise impact adversely 
on the promotion of the licensing objectives. 
 
The operating schedule set out in the application and the submissions made at the hearing 
by the applicant’s representative failed to adequately deal with this issue and failed to 
demonstrate that there would be no adverse cumulative impact on the licensing objectives. 
There was no mention of any proposed dispersal arrangements and smoking areas for 
customers appeared not to have been considered. 
 
Insufficient management and operational details were provided by the applicant and his 
representative. 
 
The Police submitted that the granting of the application would undermine the Licensing 
objectives, in particular the prevention of crime and disorder and public nuisance. 
 
The Sub-Committee took into consideration Paragraph 9.12 of the Revised Home Office 
Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 ( June 2014), which states: 
 
“ in their role as a representative authority, the police are an essential source of advice and 
information on the impact of licensable activities, particularly on the crime and disorder 
objective.  The Police should be the licensing authority’s main source of advice on matters 
relating to the promotion of crime and disorder objective….. The licensing authority should 
accept all reasonable and proportionate representations made by the police.”   
 
The application was accordingly refused on the basis that the applicant did not demonstrate 
why the operation of the business would not add to the cumulative impact or otherwise 
impact adversely on the promotion of the licensing objectives. 
  
 
 
 

           The meeting ended at 8.34 pm. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CHAIR 
 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



 

22 
 

London Borough of Islington 
 

Licensing Sub Committee C -  2 October 2014 
 

Minutes of the meeting of the Licensing Sub Committee C held at Committee Room 4, Town Hall, 
Upper Street, N1 2UD on  2 October 2014 at 6.30 pm. 

 
 

Present: Councillors: Osh Gantly, Satnam Gill and Flora Williamson. 

 
Satnam Gill in the Chair 

 

26 INTRODUCTIONS AND PROCEDURE (Item A1) 
Councillor Satnam Gill welcomed everyone to the meeting and asked members and officers 
to introduce themselves.  He outlined the procedures for the meeting. 
 

27 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE (Item A2) 
Apologies were received from Councillor Michelline Ngongo and Councillor Gary Poole. 
 

28 DECLARATIONS OF SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS (Item A3) 
Councillor Williamson substituted for Councillor Poole and Councillor Gantly substituted for 
Councillor Ngongo. 
 

29 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST (Item A4) 
None. 
 

30 ORDER OF BUSINESS (Item A5) 
The order of business would be as the agenda. 
 

31 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETINGS (Item A6) 
The minutes of the meetings held on the 17 July and the 22 July 2014 be confirmed as an 
accurate record of proceedings and the Chair be authorised to sign them. 
 

32 MILLY'S MINI MARKET, 49 UPPER STREET, LONDON, N1 0PN - APPLICATION FOR A 
NEW PREMISES LICENCE (Item B1) 
The licensing officer reported that revised conditions had been tabled. These would be 
interleaved with the agenda papers. 
 
The solicitor for the applicant reported that the hours for the sale of alcohol has been 
amended to 10:00 am to 23:00 hours.  A number of conditions had been proposed to 
control anti-social behaviour, sales of underage children, street drinking and staff training. 
 
A local resident raised objections on the application based on the cumulative impact policy 
and stated that however good the management was, there would still be an increase of 
alcohol on the streets of the area. The residents should be protected from the resulting anti-
social behaviour. 
 
The legal advisor informed residents that there was not a blanket ban on applications in the 
cumulative impact area but the policy created a rebuttable presumption. 
 
The police spoke against the application and asked that it be refused. He reported that 
there had been just less than 3500 recorded crimes in the area between April 2013 and 
March 2014 and this area was the second busiest in the Borough for the police. The police 
were tasked each weekend to this area in attempts to deal with crime and disorder.   The 

Page 9



Licensing Sub Committee C -  2 October 2014 
 

23 
 

police had spoken to the applicant and was concerned that he had not demonstrated strong 
management skills.  This was an area of high crime with a large number of licensed 
premises and he considered that an increase in alcohol on the streets would increase 
alcohol related crime. 
 
Christopher Rees-Gay solicitor, supported by Mustafa Has, the applicant, informed the Sub-
Committee that the applicant had seven years’ experience and had operated at a licensed 
premises in Bethnal Green for the last four years with no problems. The applicant had given 
the local resident his email address should there be any issues.  The shop had been 
licensed for the previous nine years and recently until 01:00 am. 
The premises was a small mini market and alcohol sales were required.  The applicant was 
a responsible operator, had met with the trading standards officer and had gone through the 
licensing policy and tailored the application in order that all licensing objectives were 
promoted.  
He reported that the concerns raised in the licensing policy regarding the Angel area related 
to the late night economy and not for the hours that this application related to. The 
Holloway/ Finsbury Park area policy did mention street drinking but it had not been stated in 
relation to this area.  The terminal hour had been moved from 08:00am to 10:00am due to 
concerns of residents.  The hours applied for reflected those stated in the guidance and the 
premises would not be selling alcohol after midnight. All staff would be fully trained and 
would not serve people when drunk.  He did not believe that off licences would encourage 
pre-loading.  The representation from PS Walsh related to street drinking.  The applicant 
had met with the officer from trading standards in the afternoon and he was satisfied with 
the conditions proposed. Residents were unable to pinpoint problems to this one specific 
premises.  
He considered that, with the conditions proposed, the application would not undermine the 
licensing objectives. There was the review process that the police could use if there were 
issues relating to the premises.  
 
In response to questions it was noted that the applicant had run two other businesses but 
these were not for licensed premises.  His previous business was licensed.  In his licensed 
business he had maintained a good relationship with the police, had passed underage test 
purchases and had removed strong alcohol from his shelves voluntarily. He stated that 
alcohol sales were expected to be about 30-40% of his business and alcohol was stored on 
shelves around the walls and not in the centre of the shop.   The applicant’s solicitor 
accepted that conditions were added at a late stage but stated that this was as his other 
premises had no issues and the licensing authority in Tower Hamlets were happy with those 
conditions. 
 
In summary, the police considered that he did not consider that alcohol in the premises 
would be stored discretely as it would be located on all sides of the shop. 
The local resident stated that yet another outlet selling alcohol must increase the cumulative 
impact of alcohol in the area and anti-social behaviour still occurred on the street even 
when alcohol was purchased prior to 11pm. 
 
The applicant stated that the cumulative impact policy in the Angel area was not specific to 
this type of premises.  Strict conditions were proposed which would prevent adverse impact 
on the licensing objectives. The licensing hours were to end at 11pm.  The applicant had 
four years of previous licensing experience with no incident and had met with trading 
standards officers. 
 
RESOLVED 
That the application for a new premises licence in respect of Milly’s Mini Market, 49 Upper 
Street, N1 be refused.  
 

Page 10



Licensing Sub Committee C -  2 October 2014 
 

24 
 

REASONS FOR DECISION 
The Sub-Committee listened to all the evidence and submissions and read all the material. 
The Sub-Committee reached the decision having given consideration to the Licensing Act 
2003, as amended, and its regulations, the national guidance and the Council’s Licensing 
Policy.  
 
The Sub-Committee took into consideration Licensing Policy 002.  The premises fall under 
the Angel and Upper Street cumulative impact area.  Licensing policy 002 creates a 
rebuttable presumption that applications for new premises licences that are likely to add to 
the existing cumulative impact will normally be refused, unless an applicant can 
demonstrate why the operation of the premises involved will not add to the cumulative 
impact or otherwise impact adversely on the promotion of the licensing objectives. 
 
The Sub-Committee carefully considered the representations made by the local residents, 
the applicant and the police. 
 
The local residents referred to anti-social behaviour in the area and high levels of crime. 
 
The Police representative submitted that the area in question experienced 3499 recorded 
crimes between April 2013 and March 2014. The crimes included Assault, GBH, affray and 
sexual assaults. The Police submitted that the large number of licensed premises in the 
area impacted greatly on the resources of the Police and other emergency services. 
 
The Police stated to the Sub-Committee that the conditions proposed by the applicant did 
not assist sufficiently to prevent a likely adverse effect on crime and disorder and public 
nuisance that the granting of the application would result in.  
 
The Sub-Committee was concerned that the granting of the new licence would undermine 
the licensing objectives. In accordance with Licensing Policy 7, the Sub-Committee noted 
the cumulative impact that the proliferation of late night venues and retailers in the borough 
is having on the promotion of the licensing objectives.  
 
The Sub-Committee concluded that the further availability of alcohol in an area where there 
was already a large number of licensed premises with associated anti-social and criminal 
behaviour would have an adverse impact on the licensing objectives.  
 
 

33 THE COFFEE WORKS PROJECT, 96-98 ISLINGTON HIGH STREET, LONDON, N1 8EG 
- APPLICATION FOR A NEW PREMISES LICENCE (Item B2) 
The applicant reported that planning permission for A3 use had been granted on the 22 
January 2014.  A letter sent from the applicant to residents was tabled and would be 
interleaved with the agenda papers. 
 
The noise officer reported that the applicant had accepted the proposed noise conditions.  
 
Three local residents spoke in objection to the application.  They reported that the coffee 
shop was in the cumulative impact area.  There considered that there was no reason to sell 
alcohol with coffee.  There was regular anti-social behaviour in the area. Concerns were 
raised that the premises would not be as well managed by a future licensee. Police did not 
consider anti-social behaviour a priority.  The residents gave an example of anti-social 
behaviour that took place after midnight on the 18 June 2014.  It was considered that the 
Angel had reached saturation point and it was for the applicant to rebut the presumption of 
cumulative impact.  The premises were close to a school and public transport links and 
asked members to refer to the Home Office guidance regarding this.  They raised concerns 
regarding the off sales and how this would be managed. They stated that additional alcohol 

Page 11



Licensing Sub Committee C -  2 October 2014 
 

25 
 

sold would be likely to add to further anti-social behaviour and also to the existing 
cumulative impact in the area.  Residents welcomed a coffee shop in the area but did not 
consider that it was necessary for the shop to sell alcohol. 
 
The applicant spoke in support of the application.  He reported that the premises was a 
speciality coffee house serving the local community. He employed local staff and operated 
an in house training programme.  He did not intend to become a bar or a club and would 
only serve alcohol until 8pm and this would be ancillary to food sales.  Wine would only be 
served to seated customers.  He did not consider that it would create further noise or impact 
on the local community.  He had spoken to the local police, recognised his responsibility to 
local residents and was sensitive to issues regarding drinking, noise and protection of 
children.  He reported that he would work in partnership with residents.  
 
In response to a question from the legal adviser he reported that, as a compromise to 
residents, he would withdraw the off sales he had applied for.  
 
In summary, the residents reported that they were unhappy with the addition to the number 
of licensed premises, which would increase the cumulative impact.  
The applicant reported that he was a responsible manager and had withdrawn off sales as a 
compromise.  He would continually review the business and liaise with residents. 
 
RESOLVED  
1) That the application for a new premises licence in respect of The Coffee Works Project, 
96-98 Islington High Street, N1 be granted to permit the sale of alcohol for consumption on 
the premises only from 12:00 to 20:00 on Monday to Saturday and 12:00 to 17:30 on 
Sunday. 
 
2) Conditions as outlined in appendix 3 as detailed on pages 100-103 of the agenda shall 
be applied to the licence as amended due to the removal of the application for off sales. 
 
REASONS FOR DECISION 
The Sub-Committee listened to all the evidence and submissions and read all the material. 
The Sub-Committee reached the decision having given consideration to the Licensing Act 
2003, as amended, and its regulations, the national guidance and the Council’s Licensing 
Policy.  
 
The Sub-Committee took into consideration Licensing Policy 002.  The premises fall under 
the Angel and Upper Street cumulative impact area.  Licensing policy 002 creates a 
rebuttable presumption that applications for new premises licences that are likely to add to 
the existing cumulative impact will normally be refused, unless an applicant can 
demonstrate why the operation of the premises involved will not add to the cumulative 
impact or otherwise impact adversely on the promotion of the licensing objectives. 
 
The Sub-Committee noted that the police did not object to the application and the Noise 
Team had no objections. 
 
The Sub-Committee also considered the representations made by the local representatives. 
 
The Sub-Committee was concerned that the granting of the new licence would undermine 
the licensing objectives. In accordance with Licensing Policy 7, the Sub-Committee noted 
the cumulative impact that the proliferation of late night venues and retailers in the borough 
is having on the promotion of the licensing objectives.  
 

Page 12



Licensing Sub Committee C -  2 October 2014 
 

26 
 

The policy was not absolute. The circumstances of each application must be considered on 
its merits. The business in question was a coffee shop and the hours requested for the 
licence were 12:00 to 20:00 Monday to Saturday and 12:00 to 17:30 on Sunday.  
 
During the application the applicant withdrew his request for an off sales licence. The Sub-
Committee therefore only had to consider whether the applicant should receive an on sales 
licence for the times referred to above. 
 
The Council’s licensing policy refers to examples where application should be considered 
as exceptional to any cumulative impact policy. 
 
The examples referred to are:- 
 

 Small premises with a capacity of 50 persons or less who only intend to operate 
during hours specified in Policy 8. 

 Premises which are not alcohol led and operate only within the hours specified in 
Licensing Policy 8 such as coffee shops. 

 
Licensing Policy 8 states that when dealing with new applications the Licensing Authority 
will give more favourable consideration to applications with certain closing hours and times. 
With regard to restaurants and cafes, the closing times referred to are 11pm (Sunday to 
Thursday) and midnight (Friday and Saturday). 
 
The premises in question was a coffee shop, it was not alcohol led and the operating hours 
are within the hours referred to in Policy 8. 
 
In light of the above and the lack of submissions by the police, the Sub-Committee 
concluded that the granting of the application subject to the conditions attached was 
proportionate and reasonable. 
 
 
 
 

 The meeting ended at 8.30 pm 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CHAIR 
 

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



 

27 
 

London Borough of Islington 
 

Licensing Sub Committee C -  18 November 2014 
 

Minutes of the meeting of the Licensing Sub Committee C held at Committee Room 4, Town Hall, 
Upper Street, N1 2UD on 18 November 2014 at 6.30 pm. 

 
Present: Councillors: Gary Poole (Chair), Angela Picknell and Flora Williamson 

 
 

 
Councillor Gary Poole in the Chair 

 

34 INTRODUCTIONS AND PROCEDURE (Item 1) 
Councillor Poole welcomed everyone to the meeting, asked members and officers to 
introduce themselves and informed all present that the procedures were outlined in the 
agenda pack. 
 

35 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE (Item 2) 
Apologies were received from Councillor Gill and Safi Ngongo. 
 

36 DECLARATIONS OF SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS (Item 3) 
Councillor Picknell substituted for Councillor Gill and Councillor Williamson substituted for 
Councillor Safi Ngongo. 
 

37 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST (Item 4) 
None. 
 

38 ORDER OF BUSINESS (Item 5) 
The order of business was as the agenda. 
 

39 THE AULD TRIANGLE PUBLIC HOUSE, 52 ST THOMAS ROAD, N4 2QW - PREMISES 
LICENCE VARIATION (Item 1) 
The Sub-Committee noted that the applicant, legal representative or the designated 
premises supervisor had not attended the meeting.  
 
The Chair of the Sub-Committee stated that the Licensing Authority may wish to take further 
action in relation to the premises. 
 
RESOLVED that the application for the premises licence at The Auld Triangle Public 
House, 52 St Thomas Road, N4 be refused. 
 
REASONS FOR DECISION 
The Sub-Committee reached the decision having given consideration to the Licensing Act 
2003, as amended, and its regulations, the national guidance and the Council’s Licensing 
Policy.  
 
The applicant and the licensee did not attend the Sub-Committee meeting. The Sub-
Committee did not require any further submissions to be made by the Licensing Authority, 
the Police or the Noise Team representative. No residents or ward Councillor was present. 
In advance of the hearing the Sub-Committee carefully considered all the evidence and 
submissions and read all the material. 
 

Page 15



Licensing Sub Committee C -  18 November 2014 
 

28 
 

The Sub-Committee carefully considered the application and in particular the steps that the 
applicant offered to take in relation to promoting the licensing objectives. 
 
The applicant was an existing licence holder, holding a licence for the sale of alcohol on and 
off the premises, the playing of recorded music for 24 hours a day and the provision of late 
night refreshment. 
 
The application was for a variation of that licence, to amend the hours for the sale of alcohol 
to that of Fridays and Saturdays from 10:00 to 1am the following day on Fridays and 
Saturdays only. 
 
The Sub-Committee noted that there had been a licensing officer panel meeting in May 
2014 after the premises had been found operating until after midnight, in breach of the 
licensing hours. Following the panel the premises was found to be selling alcohol and 
playing live music after hours on 30 May 2014. There had been a visit by licensing officers 
in August 2014 and alcohol was again witnessed being sold after hours.   
 
The Sub-Committee further noted that the licence holders or the designated premises 
supervisor did not appear to be involved in the day to day licensable activities. There had 
also been complaints regarding noise in the rear yard and noise from entertainment at the 
premises.   
 
The Sub-Committee accordingly was of the opinion that the decision to refuse the variation 
application was appropriate and proportionate for the promotion of the licensing objectives. 
 

40 AN APPLE A DAY, 621 HOLLOWAY ROAD, N19 -  NEW PREMISES LICENCE 
APPLICATION (Item 2) 
The licensing officer reported that additional information had been passed to the Sub-
Committee relating to the purchase of the leasehold interest.  These papers would be 
interleaved with the agenda papers. 
 
The police reported that there were 19 licensed premises in a 250 m radius. There were 
over 1000 crimes for the ward during 2013/14.  There had been only two reported crimes for 
the premises over the last six months since the previous revocation of the licence. He 
raised concerns that there would be the temptation to sell alcohol out of hours with 24 hour 
opening.  He had agreed three conditions with the applicants which he would like to be 
added to the licence if it was agreed. 
 
In response to questions, the police reported that they did have concerns regarding the 
cumulative impact of the premises.  He considered that the premises would have an impact 
on the area. He reported that the CCTV condition was a step in the right direction for the 
prevention of crime and disorder.  This was not a big premises and he considered that there 
was not much else that the applicant could do.  
 
Mr Haken Er and Mrs Nursever Arabacier, training consultants, supported by the applicant 
Mr Yalchin Hajiev, reported that they had liaised with the trading standards team and the 
police.  They stated that trading hours for the sale of alcohol would be reduced from the 
previous licence to 11pm and the volume of alcohol sold would be less. No rubbish would 
be removed or waste collected between the hours of 23:00 and 07:00. The pictures of 
waste outside the premises in the agenda pack were from 6 or 7 months previously.  The 
area was not like that now.  The CCTV could be used to collect evidence for crime and 
disorder. If the licence was granted all staff would be trained.  The consultants had been 
training businesses for eight years.   
 

Page 16



Licensing Sub Committee C -  18 November 2014 
 

29 
 

In response to questions, Mr Hadjev reported that there was no connection between him 
and the previous owner.  He only knew him through buying the premises.  Alcohol would be 
kept behind locked cabinets after licensing hours in order that staff resisted pressure from 
customers.  He considered that the business would not be viable without an alcohol licence.  
The business would be selling a variety of produce including organic food and wines. When 
unable to respond to a question, the Chair informed Mr Hadjev that abv was an acronym for 
alcohol by volume.  He reported that all staff had changed from previously.  Mr Hadjev 
stated he would train staff every three months.  Following translation he stated that he 
would keep a record of all training. He stated that 20 or 30 % of sales would be alcohol.  He 
worked in a shop in Muswell Hill for one year before this shop.  He was a snooker club 
manager prior to this.  No alcohol was sold in the shop but was in the snooker club.  
Challenge 25 would be covered in the training. 
 
In summary, the police reported that he was pleased with the additional conditions but had 
concerns as the premises was in a cumulative impact area.  
 
The applicant stated that conditions had been agreed with the trading standards team and 
he was happy to attend a trading standards training session in January.  In response to a 
question regarding cumulative impact the applicant stated that his variety of product was 
different to other shops and he was there to support local needs. The upstairs room could 
be used as a training venue. There were two personal licence holders on the premises. 
 
RESOLVED that the application for the premises licence for An Apple a Day, 621 Holloway 
Road, N19 be refused. 
 
REASONS FOR DECISION 
The Sub-Committee listened to all the evidence and submissions and read all the material. 
The Sub-Committee reached the decision having given consideration to the Licensing Act 
2003, as amended, and its regulations, the national guidance and the Council’s Licensing 
Policy.  
 
The Sub-Committee took into consideration Licensing Policy 1, 2, 3, 7 and 10.  The 
premises fall under the Junction area of Archway cumulative impact area.  Licensing policy 
2 creates a rebuttable presumption that applications for new premises licences that are 
likely to add to the existing cumulative impact will normally be refused, unless an applicant 
can demonstrate why the operation of the premises involved will not add to the cumulative 
impact or otherwise impact adversely on the promotion of the licensing objectives. 
 
The Junction area of Archway, in which these premises are situated, is covered specifically 
under licensing policy 3.  The Junction ward in Archway has one of the highest 
concentrations of off licences of any ward in the borough with an average of one off licence 
per 317 residents.  The policy recognises that as the density of licensed premises increases 
so does the number of incidents of alcohol crime and disorder. 
 
The Sub-Committee noted and considered the written submissions made by the 
Metropolitan Police, four local residents and two other bodies. It further considered the 
written applications made by the applicant in his application. 
 
The Sub-Committee heard oral submission from Steve Harrington of the Metropolitan Police 
and the applicant, who was further assisted by a licensing consultant. 
 
The Sub Committee noted that there were 19 off sales outlets/businesses in the area and 
that one had also existed at the premises in question. That licence was revoked earlier this 
year. The present applicants were not connected to the previous licence holder. The 
Metropolitan police provided evidence of crime figures for the area and stated that the 

Page 17



Licensing Sub Committee C -  18 November 2014 
 

30 
 

specific area in question traditionally suffers from high levels of crime and disorder. It was 
recognised that crime in this area was often a result of high levels of consumption of 
alcohol. 
 
In light of the above, strong, informed management was required to deal with potential 
difficulties that may arise from any problematic customers. 
 
The Sub Committee questioned the applicant about his plans for management and the 
training of staff and was not satisfied that this aspect had been considered sufficiently by 
the applicant. In particular, areas around the training of staff and how frequently this was to 
take place, appear to have not been given adequate consideration by the applicant. 
 
Licensing Policy 10, provided that the applicant must be able to demonstrate a commitment 
to high standards of management. The Sub Committee found that the applicant was unable 
to demonstrate a comprehensive knowledge of best practice in this regard. 
 
The Sub-Committee concluded that the premises licence would add to the availability of 
alcohol in an area where there was already a large number of licensed premises with 
associated anti-social and criminal behaviour and therefore have a cumulative impact on 
the licensing objectives. The applicant failed to rebut the presumption that the application if 
granted, would add to the cumulative impact area. The applicant did not show any 
exceptional circumstances as to why the Sub-Committee should grant the application. In 
accordance with licensing policy 2, 3 and 10, the Sub-Committee was satisfied that the 
grant of the application would undermine the licensing objectives.  The decision to refuse 
that application was accordingly, appropriate and proportionate.  
 
 
 

 The meeting ended at 7.30 pm 
 
 
 
 
 
CHAIR 
 

Page 18



Page 19

Agenda Item 1



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	6 Minutes of Previous Meetings
	Minutes , 02/10/2014 Licensing Sub Committee C
	Minutes of Previous Meeting

	1 Mini Food Store, 8 Kings Cross Road, WC1X 9AQ - Application for a premises licence review.

